
Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board 
Wednesday July 15, 2015; 3:00 pm – 4:30 pm 

CVB, 904 East Shore Drive, Ithaca 
 
 
AGENDA                    Start Time   

 Opener                    3:00 

 June STPB Meeting Minutes               3:10 

 ACTION – Approve Meeting Minutes 

 Chair’s REPORT – Sue Perlgut                   

 Staff REPORT – Tom Knipe                3:25     

 Privilege of the Floor                3:30 

 Limit of 3 minutes per person for members of the public to address the board   

 2016 Tourism Program Tax Budget              3:35 
ACTION – Vote to recommend 2016 Tourism Program Budget   

 P&E Committee Report – Ken Jupiter            3:45     
ACTION – Vote on Strategic Tourism Implementation funding recommendation for Wayfinding 

 CAP Annual Report – John Spence – PRESENTATION          4:05 

 Committee/Project Check‐ins (as needed)            4:20   

 CVB brief report (full 2Q report in Sept) – Bruce Stoff        4:25 

 Announcements (time permitting)                   
 
Agenda Packet 
1. June 2015 draft STPB meeting minutes 
2. Memo: Recommended 2016 Tourism Program Budget.  Additional 2016 Budget documents are 

available here: http://www.tompkinscountyny.gov/tourism/budget/2016requests  
3. Resolution ‐ P&E Recommendation regarding Strategic Tourism Implementation Funding for 

Wayfinding. View the Plan here: http://www.tompkinschamber.org/whats‐new/wayfinding/  
4. STPB Board Development – list of ideas 
 
 
Next Meeting 
September 16, 2015 
No meeting is scheduled for August 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MISSION: The Strategic Tourism Planning Board is charged by the 
Tompkins County Legislature with providing oversight and strategic 
direction for tourism initiatives that promote economic development and 
enhance the quality of life in Tompkins County. 

 
 
 

 



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Draft Meeting Minutes – June 2015 

Page 1  

Date:  June 17, 2015  1 
Time:  3:00-5:00pm 2 
Location:          CVB 3 
 4 
Attendees: 5 

Name Representation 

Christy Agnese E Ithaca College 

Sue Perlgut  Arts-Culture 

Josh Friedman  Arts-Culture 

John Spence  CAP, Non-Voting 

Bruce Stoff  CVB, Non-Voting 

Dwight Mengel A Transportation, Non-Voting 

Gary Ferguson A DIA, Non-Voting 

Jennifer Tavares Chamber, Non-Voting 

Martha Armstrong  TCAD, Non-Voting 

Will Burbank TC Legislature, Non-Voting 

Beverly Baker Associate Member 

Carol Kammen Associate Member 

Jon Reis  Associate Member 

Tom Knipe Staff 

Jennifer Turner  Staff 
 7 

Also in attendance: Joe Mareane, Tompkins County Administrator 8 
Todd Miner, Fred Bonn (State Parks), Heather McDaniel (TCAD), Ronda Roaring 9 
 10 
Meeting Agenda 11 
1) Opener 12 
2) May STPB Meeting Minutes 13 

 ACTION – Approve Meeting Minutes 14 
3) Privilege of the Floor 15 
4) TCAD Presentation – Heather McDaniel 16 
5) Ice Climbing Project Presentation – Todd Miner and Fred Bonn 17 
6) Chair’s Report – Sue Perlgut 18 
7) Staff Report – Tom Knipe 19 
8) Committee/Project Check-ins 20 

 Wayfinding – Jennifer Tavares 21 
 Visitor Profile Study Update – Bruce Stoff 22 

9) 2016 Room Tax Budget Recommendations 23 
10) Visit Ithaca Pre-Beta Presentation 24 
11) Announcements  25 
 26 
The meeting was called to order at 3:05 PM. 27 
 28 
Opener – Sue Perlgut opened the meeting by asking members of the STPB to engage in an interactive 29 
exercise. Members were given arts and culture, heritage, outdoor recreation, and agriculture tourism as 30 
categories and were asked to form groups based on their interests not including their current field of work. 31 
Members then were able to come up with different attractions they would recommend within the county that 32 
would fall under the category of choice.  33 
 34 
May 2015 STPB meeting minutes were approved with no changes. 35 
 36 
Privilege of the Floor – Ronda Roaring discussed her concerns related to the Chmura study, and made 37 
several comments about the 16-page draft RFP that was in the agenda packet. She went on to suggest 38 
questions to ask tourists when conducting a new visitor profile study. 39 
 40 

Name Representation 

Anne Kellerman At-Large 

Ian Golden Recreation 

Ethan Ash  Arts-Culture 

John Gutenberger E Cornell 

Lynnette Scofield  Lodging 

Kelli Cartmill  Lodging 

Rita Rosenberg  Agriculture 

David Blake   At-Large 

Andy Zepp  At-Large 

Stephen Nunley  At-Large 

Steve Hugo EAt-Large 

Ken Jupiter  At-Large 

Mike Mellor At-Large 

Anne Gossen EArts-Culture 

Sue Stafford E TC3 



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Draft Meeting Minutes – June 2015 

Page 2  

TCAD Presentation – Heather D. McDaniel, Vice President and Director of Economic Development 41 
Services, opened her report by providing an overview of TCAD, noting that they have been operating for 51 42 
years. Their mission was noted as “TCAD is dedicated to building a thriving and sustainable economy that 43 
improves the quality of life in Tompkins County by fostering the growth of business and employment, a 44 
flourishing economy, with exciting innovative firms, that inspire and attract a talented workforce.”  Focuses 45 
are on long-term quality employment opportunities, investing significant capital into the community, and 46 
focus on infrastructure investments that will support the community and environment. Economic 47 
development and technical assistance are key services offered. 48 
 49 
Topics Discussed: 50 

 Partnerships 51 
 Investments  52 
 Mentorship  53 
 Strategic Planning 54 
 Financial Assistance  55 
 Property and Sales Tax Assistance 56 
 Business Loans 57 
 Community Development 58 
 Infrastructure 59 
 Air Service 60 
 Upcoming Projects 61 

 62 
To view the presentation visit: http://www.tompkinscountyny.gov/tourism/board 63 
 64 
Ice Climbing Project Presentation – Todd Miner opened his presentation by providing background on his 65 
efforts in obtaining permits for ice climbing in Tompkins County, noting the feasibility study made possible 66 
by funding from the Tompkins County Tourism Heritage fund, and went on to report on the meetings with 67 
State Parks and the City of Ithaca and advisory group that has formed that has conducted research on ice 68 
climbing in Salmon Falls, Catskills, Colorado and Minnesota. The goal of this initiative is to provide 69 
recreational activities to locals and to open the market to the hundreds of thousands of already active 70 
climbers. A meeting in Albany with Mayor Svante, Deputy Commissioner, and Chief Legal advisor of State 71 
Parks proved to be successful in receiving tentative state approval for small pilot planned for winter of 2016. 72 
Fred Bonn, Regional Director of State Parks in the Finger Lakes, went on to report that risk will be the most 73 
significant issue and that they are currently creating rescue plans for specific sites. A third party is being 74 
identified to handle permitting for ice-climbing at Six Mile Creek, and both Robert Treman, and Buttermilk 75 
Falls State Parks. Ithaca Falls was noted as being a more long-term site. 76 
 77 
Members asked about roles. State Parks would act as landlord while a third party would permit ice climbing 78 
at selected locations. For more information or collaboration contact: todd.miner@ucdenver.edu 79 
 80 
Chair’s Report – Sue Perlgut took the afternoon FAM tour which was part of the two-day Hospitality STAR 81 
training being held this week. She went on to report that $900.00 is set aside in 2015 for board education 82 
and she will be circulating a list of possible conferences and or webinars that some members may be able 83 
to take part in. Josh Friedman discussed the possibility of creating a display or kiosk that would let the 84 
public know of upcoming events sponsored by the Tompkins County Tourism Program. Future discussions 85 
on a communication strategy and branding for the County Tourism Program will take place with a 86 
committee in September.      87 
  88 
Staff Report – Tom Knipe announced that he has recruited Ed McMahon of the Urban Land Institute to 89 
give a talk in Ithaca on Thursday September third on sustainable tourism development. Cornell will provide 90 
his speakers fee and STPB members are highly encouraged to attend. Tom went on to note his meeting 91 
with Jonathan Tourtellot, a fellow with National Geographic Traveler who coined the term geo-tourism; more 92 
in depth conversations will take place at an upcoming meeting. Tom went on to report on his meeting 93 
tonight with the City of Ithaca Administration Committee where he will be asking for their commitment of 94 
City support for the Cayuga Lake Blueway Trail plan. Tom went on to inform members that projects that put 95 



Tompkins County Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB) 
Draft Meeting Minutes – June 2015 

Page 3  

in white papers for the Upstate Revitalization Initiative will need to also apply through the CFA. A link will be 96 
forwarded to board members with all of the funding opportunities available. 97 
 98 
Committee Check-Ins:  99 
 100 
Wayfinding - Jennifer Tavares reported on the meetings related to the Wayfinding Strategy. She went on 101 
to note the possible state level sources with a number of different requirements and the plans for significant 102 
funding requests from major stakeholders. Responsibility for signs was discussed as many of the signs will 103 
direct to Cornell University, TC3, and Ithaca College. Local leverage will play a major part in the funding 104 
requests made to New York State. Concerns of not having a solid commitment from the Tompkins County 105 
Implementation funds were noted. Tom Knipe further discussed the timing issue with using the Strategic 106 
Tourism Implementation funds.  107 
 108 
Visitor Profile Study Update – Bruce Stoff reported on the Research Committee meeting about the 109 
Chmura study discussion. He noted that after processing the 19 pages of comments against the survey 110 
questions from the previous RFP, it was decided that they can go straight to the existing Request for 111 
Proposal that was included in the agenda packet. Members were asked to read the RFP and provide 112 
feedback. The intent at this time is to partner with Discovery Trail and Stewart Park on the study…there are 113 
some cost sharing benefits and efficiencies to these partnerships.  114 
 115 
2016 Room Tax Budget Recommendations – Tom Knipe reported that the assumptions for revenue will 116 
remain at 4% for 2015 and 6% for 2016. After budget adjustments, the reserve balance at the end of 2015 117 
will be about $97,000 and $66,000 by the end of 2016. A special thank-you went out to the Budget 118 
Committee for their work. Tom walked through the detailed budget recommendations provided in the 119 
agenda packet. The STPB will vote on the budget at the July meeting after a possible presentation to the 120 
Economic Development Committee.  121 
 122 
Visitithaca.com Pre-Beta Presentation – Kristy Mitchell presented board members with a snapshot of the 123 
newly structured visitithaca.com website. The new site is adaptable with standard and visual navigation that 124 
can be independently programmed and can covert to stacked icons for use on cellphones. The new site will 125 
also feature a portal to lodging, visitor events and aims to invite local partnerships as well as sales 126 
opportunities related to advertisement space. The website is expected to be ready for STPB members to 127 
beta test soon. 128 
 129 
Announcements – Josh Friedman shared the new Come for the Gorges Stay for the Show marketing 130 
campaign which was funded with room tax. Rita Rosenberg announced that tickets are available online for 131 
the Savor the Finger Lakes Festival on September 3rd. The Gorges marathon was announced as having 132 
attendees from 18 states as well as Canada. The re-opening of the Cayuga Waterfront Trail will be August 133 
30th.  134 
 135 
With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:02pm. 136 
 137 
Respectfully Submitted, 138 
Jennifer Turner, Administrative Assistant 139 
Tompkins County Planning Department 140 
 141 
Next Meeting Scheduled 142 
Wednesday July 15, 2015 143 



Inclusion through Diversity 

 

 

 
Edward C. Marx, AICP 
Commissioner of Planning Telephone (607) 274-5560 
and Community Sustainability Fax (607) 274-5578 

TO:  

FROM:  

DATE:  

RE:  

Strategic Tourism Planning Board (STPB)

Tom Knipe, Senior Planner / Tourism Coordinator 

July 8, 2015 

2016 Tourism Program Budget Recommendations 

Action Requested 
The purpose of this memo is to describe the recommended 2016 Tompkins County Tourism Program 
budget. The STPB is asked to vote to recommend the 2016 tourism budget at the July 15th STPB 
meeting. The Economic Development Committee of the Legislature will vote on the STPB’s 
recommendations at their August 3rd meeting. The County Administrator will then work the tourism 
budget into the overall 2016 County budget for action by the Legislature this fall. 

Link: 2016 tourism budget requests are available through the following page on the County website: 
http://www.tompkinscountyny.gov/tourism/budget/2016requests  

Background – Revenues 
Between April and June, the STPB Budget Committee developed preliminary projections of 2015 and 
2016 room tax revenues and associated changes in room tax reserves, with input from tourism 
program administrators and lodging industry experts. 2015 members of the STPB Budget Committee 
are Christy Agnese (Chair), Stephen Nunley, Sue Perlgut, Sue Stafford, and John Gutenberger. We are 
modifying the projection of 5% growth for 2015 to 4% and establishing a projection of 6% growth for 
2016, using actual 2014 revenues as a base.  

2015 and 2016 room tax revenue projections are based on analysis of several sources including actual 
Tompkins County room tax revenues, local hotel industry data from Smith Travel Research, projected 
increases in local room supply due to hotel construction, other local conditions, and national industry 
forecasts by a prominent hotel industry research firm (PKF). Notably, 2016 projections are based on 
an assumption of increased hotel room supply beginning August 1, 2016 due to the opening of the new 
Marriott Hotel at the East end of the Ithaca Commons. Detailed calculations of the unallocated reserve 
balance and revenue projections are available upon request. 

Room tax revenues through June are tracking at just under the budgeted projection of 5%.  Therefore, 
sticking with the adjustment for 2015 down to 4% seems prudent. If revenues exceed 4% in 2015, the 
projected year-end reserve balance would grow a little. 

Tompkins County 

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING

121 East Court Street 
Ithaca, New York  14850 



Inclusion through Diversity  

 
Background - Reserves 
The current unallocated reserve balance is just over $131,000 (from County Finance). This is after 
meeting the County’s 2015 obligation of $60,000 to TCAD from room tax. Given a reduction in the 
2015 room tax revenue projection and 2015 budget adjustments to reallocate unspent 2014 funds in 
the ACOD and Tourism Capital Grant Programs, the unallocated reserve balance is expected to be at 
$97,000 by the end of 2015. The recommended 2016 budget places room tax spending at about 
$26,000 more than revenues which will have the effect of reducing reserves to about $71,000 in 2016, 
which is 2.8% of revenues. A guiding principal of the STPB Budget Committee has been to maintain a 
small room tax reserve balance of around 3% to limit the potential for disruption to tourism programs 
should revenues come in at less than projected. 
 
Budget Request Process 
The Tompkins County Tourism Program solicited budget requests from tourism programs and heard 
presentations from each program at a May 27th meeting at Ithaca College. Program administrators and 
committee chairs were asked to limit their 2016 requests to a 3% increase from their adopted 2015 
room tax allocations. All programs with the exception of Community Celebrations responded to the 
budget target guidance, and each budget request included:  

 Standard budget request form and budget worksheet template. 
 Information on how the requested budget will support implementation of the 2020 Strategic 

Tourism Plan. 
 Clear program goals and measures of achievement. 

 
Following budget presentations, the STPB Budget Committee explored several possible budget 
schemes, weighed opportunities presented by each program and developed preliminary 2016 budget 
recommendations. 
 
Summary – Preliminary 2016 Tourism Budget Recommendations 

 The following programs are funded at requested levels of around or slightly less than 3%:  
Beautification, Signage and Public Art; Tompkins Festivals Program, Hospitality Workforce 
Development, Discovery Trail, and Market the Arts. 

 The CVB is recommended to be funded at the requested amount minus a small sum of just 
over $1,000 which is the amount of an adjustment based on a minor calculation error.   

 Several lines are increased slightly above the requested amounts in order to fill needs in those 
programs: Arts and Culture Organizational Development, Tourism Capital Grants, CAP 
Operating Assistance, Community Celebrations Grants, Tourism Project Grants, Tourism 
Marketing and Advertising Grants, and New Tourism Initiative Grants. 

 The County Historian stipend and Tourism Partner Award lines are maintained flat, as 
requested. 

 $165,000 is set aside for Strategic Tourism Implementation (see summary on the next page). 
 $900 in funding for STPB board development (travel, training, etc) is made available again in 

2016. These funds will go through the tourism administration budget within the Planning 
Department.  

 Strategic Planning and Staffing – While the 2016 budget maintains the same level of staffing 
and adds $1,875 in matching funds for an intern stipend, this line is down 0.5%. This is due to 
two factors: 1) the fact that for budgeting purposes salaries are held flat for 2015 and 2016 and, 
2) slight adjustments in the portion of the function paid for out of the “County 10%” vs. 
program funds. This line may increase by up to $2,000 once a new white collar contract is 
agreed upon. A 75/25 split between program funds and “County 10%” funds to support 
tourism administration services by the Tompkins County Planning Department is maintained. 



Inclusion through Diversity  

 
 
 
 
 TCAD – The room tax contribution in 2016 is $125,000 and is shown in the "County" section 

of the attached room tax budget. It will rise to $200,000 in 2017 and $205,000 in 2018. 
 
Strategic Tourism Implementation funds 
A special budget line is recommended to be funded again in 2016 for Strategic Tourism 
Implementation. The guiding concept is to set aside a flexible portion of room tax funds to take 
advantage of timely and meaningful opportunities to implement the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan. 
Three projects were funded in 2013 through this line: the IthacaFork.com Farm to Fork Culinary 
Tourism Initiative, electronic kiosks for the new Ithaca Commons, and the Tompkins County 
Wayfinding and Interpretive Signage Plan. $150,000 is budgeted in 2015 for Strategic Tourism 
Implementation, which will be made available in fall 2015 for projects that directly implement Critical 
Actions from the 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan or projects coming directly out of related 
implementation plans (Wayfinding Signage, Agriculinary Tourism, Heritage Tourism). In addition, a 
portion of these funds will be used to complete a Visitor Profile Study in 2016. Combining funds from 
2015 and 2016, a total of $315,000 will be available in the next year and a half for Strategic Tourism 
Implementation, with approximately $60,000 of this total needed for the Visitor Profile Study.   
 
Contact Information 
Tom Knipe, Tompkins County Planning Department, tknipe@tompkins-co.org, 607-274-5560  
Sue Perlgut, STPB Chair, scperl@verizon.net  
Christy Agnese, STPB Vice-Chair and Budget Committee Chair, cagnese@ithaca.edu  
Tompkins County Tourism Program website: http://www.tompkins-co.org/tourism/  
 
Attachments: 

 Tompkins County Tourism Program Descriptions (one page) 
 2016 Tourism Program Recommended Budget – Detailed (three pages) 
 2016 Tourism Program Recommended Budget – Summary (one page) 
 2001-2014 Room Tax Revenue and Reserve Balance History 



Marketing (known as the 60%)
• Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB)

enhances economic development through
promotion of local activities and assets to
visitors as well as residents. The CVB is the
County’s designated Tourism Promotion
Agency.

• Tourism Marketing and Advertising Grants
help promote events and projects likely to
attract visitors in a manner consistent with the
CVB’s marketing strategy.

• Discovery Trail provides collective marketing
for eight local organizations that have a dual
mission of education and tourism promotion:
PRI- Museum of the Earth, Cornell Lab of
Ornithology, Cornell Plantations, Herbert
F. Johnson Museum of Art, Cayuga Nature
Center, Sciencenter, The History Center, and
Tompkins County Public Library.

• New Tourism Initiative Grants support
significant new tourism generating initiatives
that flow from and are consistent with the
Strategic Tourism Plan.

• Market the Arts collectively markets Tompkins
County’s artists and features them on one
website to allow them to sell their work;
includes but is not limited to the members of
the Greater Ithaca Art Trail.

• Tompkins Tourism Partner Award recognizes
volunteer efforts to attract large groups,
meetings or conventions to Tompkins County.

Government Tax Administration
• County 10% NYS law permits the County

to retain 10% of room tax collections for
administration and auditing of room tax funds.

The Tompkins County Tourism Program currently 
funds the following programs. 

Product Development (known as the 40%)
• Beautification, Signage & Public Art improve

way finding signage to direct travelers to key
destinations and beautify communities to
welcome visitors, especially at gateways.

• Arts & Culture Organizational Development
Grants strengthen large existing arts and
culture organizations with long term financial
planning and development tools.

• Community Celebrations Grants support
observances, commemorations, jubilations,
inaugurations, presentations, or other “red
letter days” or salutes that have meaning for the
community.

• Community Arts Partnership – Assistance
with CAP Operating Expenses strengthens the
visibility of Tompkins County’s thriving arts
community.

• Festivals Program provides technical
assistance, coordination, and resource sharing
for local festivals at a macro level to enhance
their effectiveness.

• Tourism Project Grants support tourism-
generating single projects.

• County Historian provides a historical
connection to today’s tourism events and
projects.

• Strategic Planning and Staffing maximizes
tourism program effectiveness and reduces
volunteer STPB workload on program
administration through sustainable staffing,
leadership and research.

• Tourism Capital Grants expand major visitor-
generating facilities, and fund feasibility studies
for potential projects.

• Workforce Development/TC3 Customer
Service creates a career ladder for entry-level
jobs in the tourism industry and provides
training to improve the visitors’ experience.

Current Programs



2016 Tompkins County Tourism Program Budget

7/815 STPB Budget Committee Recommendations
PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 % change

Modified 
Budget

Modified 
Budget

Modified 
Budget Adopted Adjustments Modified Requested

Recommend
ed

2015 adopted 
to 2016

Function
Arts and Cultural Organizational Development 
     Direct Funding 178,673 198,210 196,755 189,519 7,654 197,173 195,505 200,000 5.5%
     Program Management  (CAP) 22,100 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0.0%
          Subtotal 200,773 208,210 208,654 199,519 7,654 207,173 205,505 210,000 5.3%

Beautification, Public Art & Signage
     Direct Funding 121,009 124,398 128,081 123,616 123,616 127,243 127,243 2.9%
     Program Management (Chamber) 8,000 8,200 8,495 8,180 8,180 8,200 8,200 0.2%
          Subtotal 129,009 132,598 136,576 131,796 131,796 135,443 135,443 2.8%

Tourism Capital Grants
     Direct Funding 175,788 187,950 186,493 179,966 18,976 204,978 189,959 191,000 6.1%
     Program Management  (TCAD) 19,532 14,832 20,722 19,996 13,960 16,000 16,000 -20.0%
          Subtotal 195,320 202,782 209,370 199,962 18,976 218,938 205,959 207,000 3.5%

Community Arts Partnership-Operating Asst. 37,000 38,110 39,250 37,876 37,876 39,012 40,000 5.6%
Community Celebrations 26,600 35,024 32,548 32,548 32,548 34,175 34,200 5.1%
Tourism Project Grants 69,103 76,013 78,300 78,300 78,300 80,700 84,000 7.3%
Festivals 25,000 25,000 25,750 24,849 24,849 25,594 25,594 3.0%
WIB/TC3 Customer Service Program 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 29,818 30,900 3.0%
County Historian 5,000 5,500 5,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500 0.0%
          Subtotal 214,458 231,402 211,348 211,073 211,073 216,799 222,194 5.3%

Grand Total-Product Development 739,560 774,992 765,948 742,349 768,979 763,706 774,637 4.3%
% of total 40.8% 40.3% 40.4% 41.3% 40.4% 40.7%

Page 1

2016 Tompkins County Tourism Program Budget ‐ STPB Recommendations



MARKETING 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 % change

Function
Modified 
Budget

Modified 
Budget

Modified 
Budget Adopted Adjustments Modified Requested

Recommend
ed 

2015 adopted 
to 2016

   Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB)
CVB Tourism Marketing Operations
     Personnel (salaries and fringe) 436,001 485,203 468,946 485,900 485,900 502,921 502,921 3.5%
     Supplies and Materials 65,995 69,075 72,500 63,200 63,200 56,450 56,450 -10.7%
     Downtown Visitor Center Rent 11,330 11,670 12,020 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000 0.0%
          Subtotal 513,326 565,948 553,466 563,100 563,100 573,371 573,371 1.8%

Chamber Administration
     Staff 39,563 36,785 39,426 39,340 39,340 41,418 41,418 5.3%
     Facilities 87,199 88,843 90,619 86,700 86,700 88,900 88,900 2.5%
          Subtotal 126,762 125,628 130,045 126,040 126,040 130,318 130,318 3.4%

Program Costs:
     Marketing 277,250 270,200 366,250 287,950 287,950 300,444 300,444 4.3%
     Public Relations 4,350 16,750 3,000 5,200 5,200 5,500 5,500 5.8%
     Visitor Services* 11,100 11,500 26,500 30,400 30,400 62,200 62,200 104.6%
     Group Sales 38,750 44,250 46,450 50,320 50,320 48,000 48,000 -4.6%
          Subtotal 331,450 342,700 442,200 373,870 373,870 416,144 416,144 11.3%

Gross CVB Budget 971,538 1,034,276 1,130,711 1,063,010 1,063,010 1,119,833 1,119,833 5.3%
Less: Program Revenue/Applied Reserves 75,750 120,500 168,211 139,010 139,010 171,011 171,011 23.0%
     Subtotal--CVB Allocation 895,788 913,776 957,500 924,000 924,000 948,822 948,822 2.7%

   Other Marketing Programs
Marketing and Advertising Grants 50,699 54,444 52,220 48,000 48,000 49,400 52,000 8.3%
New Tourism Initiative Grants 66,445 73,090 75,300 75,300 75,300 77,500 79,000 4.9%
Discovery Trail 36,270 36,270 37,360 36,055 36,055 37,137 37,137 3.0%
Recognition Awards 3,000 2,000 2,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 0.0%
Market the Arts 10,000 10,300 10,600 10,200 10,200 10,500 10,500 2.9%
     Sub-total Other Marketing 177,914 188,103 177,480 170,555 170,555 175,537 179,637 5.3%
Grand Total--Tourism Marketing 1,073,702 1,101,879 1,134,980 1,094,555 1,094,555 1,124,359 1,128,459 3.1%

% of total 59.2% 59.7% 59.6% 58.7% 59.6% 59.3%

Page 2

2016 Tompkins County Tourism Program Budget ‐ STPB Recommendations



COMBINED PRODUCT 
DEVELOPMENT & MARKETING 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 2015 2016 2016 % change

Modified 
Budget

Modified 
Budget

Proposed 
Modified Adopted Adjustments Modified Requested

Recommend
ed

2015 adopted 
to 2016

   County
Countribution to County for programmatic 
support and tax administration (County 
10%) 203,672 213,855 226,034 237,335 235,407 249,531 249,531 5.1%
STPB Staff/Tourism Coordination** 74,386 77,834 80,169 79,106 79,106 82,974 78,710 -0.5%
Tompkins County Area Development (TCAD 0 0 150,000 60,000 60,000 125,000 125,000 108.3%
     Grant Total-- County 278,058 291,689 456,203 376,441 374,513 457,506 453,241 20.4%

Strategic Tourism Implementation 147,000 0 150,000 150,000 150,000 165,000 10.0%

Product Development and Marketing 1,813,262 1,876,872 1,900,928 1,836,904 1,863,534 1,888,065 1,903,096 3.6%

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,091,320 2,315,561 2,357,131 2,363,346 2,388,048 2,495,571 2,521,337 6.7%

REVENUES AND RESERVES
Projected Room Tax Revenues 2,036,716 2,152,700 2,260,335 2,373,352 2,354,070 2,354,070 2,495,315 2,495,315 5.1%
Projected Use of Reserves 54,604 162,861 96,796 -10,006 33,977 256 26,022
Total Budget Available to County and Programs 2,091,320 2,315,561 2,357,131 2,363,346 2,388,048 2,495,571 2,521,337 6.7%

Unallocated Reserve Balance (From County Finance) Balance 1/1/13 Balance April '15

Projected Year-End Unallocated Reserve Ba 251,111 156,276 62,863 72,869 131,042 97,065 96,808 71,042
% of revenues 12.3% 7.3% 2.8% 3.1% 4.1% 3.9% 2.8%

* 104.6% growth in the CVB's visitor services line from 2015 to 2016 is mostly due to a grant in the amount of $30,000 from I Love NY for the "Digital Visitor Services" study project.

** 2016 STPB Staff/Tourism Coordination figure assumes flat salaries in 2015 and 2016. This line may increase by up to $2,000 upon completion of County negotiations with the white collar bargaining unit

Page 3

2016 Tompkins County Tourism Program Budget ‐ STPB Recommendations



2016 Tompkins County Tourism Program Budget  - Preliminary Recommendation

Summary--Room Tax Budget, 2011-2016 Recommended

Change

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 2016 2015 Adopted

Modified Modified Modified Modified Adopted Modified Recommend to 2016 Recomm

Expenses

Product Development 707,886          739,560       774,992       765,948       742,349       768,979       774,637         32,288                   

Tourism Marketing 1,068,498       1,073,702    1,101,879    1,134,980    1,094,555    1,094,555    1,128,459      33,904                   

County Allocation/STPB Staffing 224,051          278,058       291,689       306,203       316,441       314,513       328,241         11,800                   

TCAD -               150,000       60,000         60,000         125,000         65,000                   

Strategic Tourism Implementation 147,000       -               150,000       150,000       165,000         15,000                   

  Total 2,000,435       2,091,320    2,315,561    2,357,131    2,363,346    2,388,048    2,521,337      157,991                 

Revenue

Current Year Collections 1,859,659       2,036,716 2,152,700 2,260,335    2,373,352 2,354,070 2,495,315 121,963                 

Applied Reserves 140,776          54,604 162,861 96,796 (10,006) 33,977 26,022 36,028                   

  Total 2,000,435       2,091,320 2,315,561 2,357,131 2,363,346 2,388,048 2,521,337 157,991                 



Tompkins County Hotel Room Occupancy Tax Revenues 2001-2014

Quarter 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Q1 80,227       82,981       125,579     146,117     154,478     166,984     190,237     224,245 185,733 205,629 198,559 249,508 246,795 239,394
Q2 159,057     188,101     269,348     302,502     306,373     357,732     389,309 425,802 411,982 450,117 462,564 515,379 530,995 518,257
Q3 237,120     325,523     402,308     439,543     459,899     532,705 609,916 652,904 613,173 642,496 688,976 712,305 742,300 791,531
Q4 173,243     252,605     321,522     350,683     396,604     434,023     506,389 500,553 482,818 493,815 566,231 558,170 586,547 607,263

 
TOTAL 649,646     849,209     1,118,757  1,238,845 1,317,354  1,491,443  1,695,852  1,803,504 1,693,706 1,792,057 1,916,329 2,035,361 2,106,637 2,156,446

ADDITIONAL TAX 12,651       1,268         18,028       1,107 28,210     32,791     42,400     -8,616 (22,625)    -8,759 5,102 45,069 42,079 107,084
COLLECTED DURING QUARTER (i.e.NOT FOR CURRENT QUARTER)

TOTAL Revenue 662,297     850,477     1,136,784  1,239,952 1,345,564  1,524,234  1,738,251  1,794,887 1,671,081 1,783,299 1,921,431 2,080,430 2,148,716 2,263,529
Budgeted Revenue 617,850 683,300 1,115,530 1,220,000 1,349,200  1,328,865  1,461,752 1,773,138 1,552,161 1,700,000 1,859,659 2,036,716 2,152,700 2,260,335

Revenue Growth 28.4% 33.7% 9.1% 8.5% 13.3% 14.0% 3.3% -6.9% 6.7% 7.7% 8.3% 3.3% 5.3%

INTO RESERVES (Actual revenue less budgeted revenue; does not include expenditure side)

44,447       167,177     21,254       19,952       (3,636)        195,369     276,499     21,749       118,920     83,299 61,772     43,714     (3,984)     3,194       
Reserve Balance (Reserve balances from County CFO)

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

97,973 275,409 408,360 239,978 389,484 332,253 643,291 434,692 384,202 252,411 186,228 165,892 156,000 45,162

Year Budg. Rev. % Change
Actual 

Revenues
% Change

Actual 
revenue 
previous 
year to 
budgeted 
revenue

2001 617,850 662,297     
2002 683,300 10.6% 850,477     28.4% 3.2% 4%=May'02 room tax
2003 1,115,530 63.3% 1,136,784  33.7% 31.2% 4.5%=Dec'02increase 
2004 1,220,000 9.4% 1,239,952 9.1% 7.3% 5%=Jun'03 dates:
2005 1,349,200  10.6% 1,345,564  8.5% 8.8%

2006 1,328,865  -1.5% 1,524,234  13.3% -1.2% Dec-Feb 1Q=
2007 1,461,752 10.0% 1,738,251  14.0% -4.1% Mar-May 2Q=
2008 1,773,138 21.3% 1,794,887 3.3% 2.0% Jun-Aug 3Q=
2009 1,552,161 -12.5% 1,671,081 -6.9% -13.5% Sep-Nov 4Q=
2010 1,700,000 9.5% 1,783,299 6.7% 1.7%

2011 1,859,659  9.4% 1,921,431 7.7% 4.3%

2012 2,036,716 9.5% 2,080,430 8.3% 6.0%

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

D
o

lla
rs

Tompkins County Hotel Room Occupancy Tax By Quarter 2001-2014

Q4

Q3

Q2

Q1

643,291

131,042

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

2
0
0
1

2
0
0
2

2
0
0
3

2
0
0
4

2
0
0
5

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
7

2
0
0
8

2
0
0
9

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
3

2
0
1
4

2
0
1
5

A
xi
s 
Ti
tl
e

Tompkins County Room Tax Reserve 
Balance History

Prepared by tknipe@tompkins-co.org, 6/16/2015



 

 

STRATEGIC TOURISM PLANNING BOARD 
Wednesday, July 15, 2015 

 
STPB Resolution No. 1 of 2015: Support for Consolidated Funding Application (CFA) and 
Commitment to Recommend use of Local Hotel Room Occupancy Tax Funds as County 
Share of Local Matching Funds for the Tompkins County Wayfinding and Interpretive 
Signage Project 
 
WHEREAS, in 2013, the Tompkins County Chamber of Commerce received a $62,970 Strategic 
Tourism Implementation grant from the Tompkins County Tourism Program, upon 
recommendation of the STPB, to develop a plan to create a more comprehensive and coherent 
signage system throughout Tompkins County, and    
 
WHEREAS, the program includes a comprehensive gateway and municipal signage program; 
standard NYS DOT signage; signage “districts” designated to help visitors, parents, and our 
transient residential population navigate through Ithaca and Tompkins County; and vehicular 
directional signage to parks, trails, Cornell University, Ithaca College, and other important visitor 
destinations, and  
 
WHEREAS, the proposed plan will serve as a key element of a strong tourism infrastructure in 
Tompkins County, enhancing the ease of navigation for our nearly 900,000 annual visitors to key 
attractions and destinations while also supporting the development of a sense of place as one 
moves through the county, and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of New York has announced the availability of funds through the 
2015 State of New York Consolidated Funding Application (CFA), and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tompkins County Chamber of Commerce and its Foundation have been working 
with numerous stakeholders, including the County, City, Cornell University, Ithaca College, and 
other municipalities to pull together a local funding contribution match to the state CFA 
application, and 
 
WHEREAS, currently there is a lack of consistency in physical design and frequency of signs 
and no conceptual connection between types of signage, and improving wayfinding signage is 
identified as a priority in the Tompkins County 2020 Strategic Tourism Plan, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tompkins County Legislature has charged the STPB with providing oversight 
and strategic direction for use of the County’s nearly $2.5 million dollars in annual hotel room 
occupancy tax funds, and the STPB develops recommendations to the Legislature for room tax 
budget allocations and tourism grants funded by room tax, and  
 
WHEREAS, Tompkins County has established a dedicated funding source for implementing the 
2020 Strategic Tourism Plan, known as Strategic Tourism Implementation Grants, for which 
implementation of the Wayfinding and Interpretive Signage Plan is an eligible project, and  
 
WHEREAS, $150,000 is budgeted for Strategic Tourism Implementation Grants in the 2015 
Tompkins County room tax budget, an additional $165,000 is identified for this line in the 



 

 

preliminary 2016 budget, and additional funds in this line are expected to be available in 2017, 
and 
 
WHEREAS, and the STPB views this project as a funding priority for Strategic Tourism 
Implementation funds, now, therefore, be it  
 
RESOLVED, that the STPB hereby confirms its intention to recommend up to $150,000 in 
Strategic Tourism Implementation funding for the Tompkins County Wayfinding and 
Interpretive Signage Project with funding spread over the three years of 2015, 2016 and 2017 in 
approximately equal amounts of $50,000 each year, contingent upon an award of funds from the 
2015 CFA, with the final funding formula to be determined based on stakeholder participation 
and total project costs, and also contingent on final confirmation of awards made by the 
Tompkins County Legislature. 
 
Moved:   Seconded: 

 Vote:  



STPB Board training opportunities and ideas 
7/10/15 
 
Consultants/Speakers 
Marcia Nedland, Fall Creek Consultants, national housing and marketing consultant for branding. 
www.FallCreekConsultants.com  
 
Conferences/Summits 
Empire State Tourism Conference 
This is an annual two-day conference hosted by the NYS Tourism Industry Association (NYSTIA). It 
attracts CVBs, attractions, accommodations and vendors who supply the industry. ILNY typically 
presents its annual marketing and promotion plan at this event. 
https://www.nystia.org/empire-state-tourism-conference 
 
NYSHTA Annual Tourism Conference 
The NYS Hospitality & Tourism Association is the state’s hotel industry trade group. It hosts its 
annual conference in the spring. This conference is geared largely to hotel management and operations 
with additional content on broader travel trends. 
http://www.nyshta.org/index.php/home/annual-conference 
 
Governor’s Tourism Summit 
This 2-year-old event replaces a conference known as the Governor’s Tourism Conference. The 
Governor uses the event to draw attention to tourism and to highlight the State’s efforts promoting 
tourism. It’s a one-day event attended by tourism leaders, hospitality executives and elected officials. It 
tends to be announced late, usually two weeks beforehand. 
2014: http://www.governor.ny.gov/news/governor-cuomo-hosts-second-tourism-summit-expands-
unprecedented-commitment-growing-tourism 
 
2013: https://www.governor.ny.gov/news/governor-cuomo-host-new-york-states-first-tourism-summit-
may-8 
 
IHMRS/AHLA/NYSHTA: NYC in November - the NYSHTA folks co sponsor the national 
conference: International Hotel Motel and Restaurant show.  While the trade show may not be 
beneficial to someone on the STPB, the workshops and the NYSHTA annual meeting may be relevant 
to some members.  
 
Action Day 
TIC: http://www.ticnys.org/  Coordinates the Tourism Action Day in Albany in March and I know 
other STPB have gone in the past.  
 
Web sites/newsletter 
Skift.com Fabulous travel news/trends website with a great daily newsletter. It’s http://www.Skift.com, 
the newsletter sign up is on the top right corner of the page 
 
 
Thank you to Sue Stafford and the CVB for theses suggestions. 




